
LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
JULY 23, 2018

Present: Chair Bennett, D. Andersen, R. Haak, D. Richards, CEOA. Backus, & Secretary, A.  
Houk.    

Excused:   J. Palmer, D. Simpson, J. Sparling, Attorney J. Campbell

Agenda:   
th1)  Approve themeeting minutes. –June11, 2018

2)  Shaun & Jennifer Ladd – BigTreeRoad, Livonia, NewYork, Tax # 65.63-1-33.2,    
Approval ofSitePlan & Conditional UsePermit.  

Chair Bennett opened themeeting at7:00p.m.   

th1)   Approve Meeting Minutes forJune11, 2018.  Chair R. Bennett asked foramotion to
approve.  M/2/C (R. Haak/D. Richards) approved assubmitted.  Carried 4-0

2)  Shaun & Jennifer Ladd – BigTreeRoad, Livonia, NY

ChairR. Bennett asked Shaun & Jennifer Ladd tocomeforward todiscuss approval ofSitePlan
andConditional UsePermit foraFood Trailer andStand onthetriangular lotwestoftheVitale
Parkparking lot.  

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that theLIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD willholdapublic
hearing onMonday July23, 2018at7p.m. attheLivonia Town Hall, 35Commercial Street,  
Livonia, NewYorktoconsider theapplication ofShaun & Jennifer Ladd forapproval ofa
Conditional UsePermit perSection 150-37oftheZoning CodeofLivonia.  Theproposal isfor
Food Trailer located atBigTreeRoad, Lakeville, NewYork.  Taxparcel number 65.63-1-33.2.  
TheConditional UsePermit isrequired perSection 150-37D (2). Theproperty iszoned
Waterfront Development (WD).  Theapplication isonfileintheBuilding & Zoning Department
intheLivonia Town Hall, 35Commercial Street, Livonia, NewYork forpublic review.  All
interested parties willbeheardatthistime.   

Theapplicant ishere tonight forSitePlanapproval andaConditional UsePermit for theFood
Trailer.  They camebefore thePlanning Board withaproposed concept foraFoodTrailer.  The
Planning Board looked favorably ontheir concept pending Town Board involvement duetothe
proximity toVitale Park.  CEOA. Backus summarized theoutcome fromtheTown Board

thMeeting onJune7 regarding theproposed FoodTrailer located onthelotwestoftheVitale
Parking lot.  TheTown Board agreed that theywould notbeinstalling afence, which would be
detrimental totheapplicant aslongastheapplicant obtained SitePlanapproval andthat
satisfactory screening & landscaping were implemented.  Theapplicant willgrantadrainage

1



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
JULY 23, 2018

easement totheTown fortheforthcoming mutual drainage improvements inandaround Vitale
Park.  ChairR. Bennett asked theapplicant toexplain forthePublic theirproposal since they
werenotpresent atthelastconcept meeting.  S. Ladd stated that theyareproposing todevelop
andcleanuptheproperty andplaceaFood Trailer withanicecream stand.  Withapproval, they
would also liketoerectafenceonthewestsideoftheproperty.  Theyhadoriginally proposed
putting 8-10parking spotsonthebacksideofthelot.  Lighting would bedarkskycompliant.    

ChairR. Bennett opened upthePublic Hearing.  Heasked that theystate theirnameandaddress.   
John & Margaret Meyers of3470Lakeville Parkstated that theydiscussed with theapplicant
theirplans forlighting andafence.  Their concerns arethe10parking spaces thatwould be
going inacross fromtheirproperty.  Theroad isagravel anddirt road.  People coming and
pulling inandoutoftheparking spaces willeventually tearuptheroad.  J. Myers stated thathe
hasmentioned hisconcerns totheTown Board stating thatsince theroad iscurrently aprivate
drive, hefelt therewasaneed forsome improvements ontheroadwith increasing thetraffic
volume.  Hewould rather seeadriveway going intotheirproperty withparking spots.  ChairR.  
Bennett commented thathethought theTown wasgoingtobemaking some improvements to
thatroad.  CEOA. Backus clarified that those improvements were fromthetraffic light tothe
backofPizza Paul’s.  Thatwasajointoperation tocorrect andimprove someofthedrainage
issues inthatarea.  There waspaving doneandcatch basins installed inthatarea.  Atthis time,  
therearenoplans foranyimprovements thathewasaware oftoLakeville ParkRoad.  Highway
Superintendent doesnotrecognize Lakeville Parkasaroad that ismaintained bytheTown.   
Residents confirmed that theyshare themaintenance andsnow removal.  M. Meyers asked the
applicant iftheycould advise herwhen they weredoing anywork toensure shecould exitand
re-enter toherproperty assheneeds toleave forwork later inthedaytime.  J. Ladd stated that
therearenoimmediate plans toimplement anyparking atthispoint.  Theywill address thatafter
things areupandrunning.  CEOA. Backus asked iftheLadd’splantooperate during thewinter.   
J. Ladd stated that theywillbeoperating inthewinter, butitwillbelimited.  SethBagley, who
owns twoadjacent properties located at3461Lakeville Parkand5812 BigTreeRoad stated that
hehasnoobjections tothefoodtruck.  Hisconcern istheroadandfeels theTown needs tofix
Lakeville ParkRoad.  There isgoing tobeanincrease intraffic with thisproposal, and there is
anadditional commercial parcel forsale thathaspotential foranother business which will
increase thetraffic.  Hefeels that theTownneeds tofixtheroadandput insidewalks to
accommodate thedevelopment.  Heisalsoconcerned about people parking inhisparking lotand
throwing theirgarbage intohisdumpster.  MarkLoiof5818BigTree isalsoconcerned about
people parking inhisparking lot.  Hestated itisveryhard, especially when itsbusy tomonitor
theparking lottomake sureitisbeing usedbyhiscustomers only.  Heisconcerned about
people using hisdumpster, asthis isacurrent problem.  Heasked iftheywillbehaving any
musicorbands.  J. Ladd stated that therearenoplans foranymusic.  Heisinsupport ofthe
Ladd’sproposal.  S. Ladd stated that theyhave considered erecting afenceonthewest sideof
theirproperty which would deter people fromparking attheChinese Restaurant andS. Bagley’s
property.  TheLadd’salsoowntheoldNothnagle building, which has25parking spaces
available.  S. Bagley asked where thewater linewasgoing totheLadd’sproperty.  S. Ladd
stated that thewater andsewer lines randownLakeville ParkRoad.  TheLadd’swillbe
contacting theLivingston County Water & Sewer toconnect intothecurrent lines.  J. Myers
stated thathewasaware theyweregoing tobeplacing picnic tables andasked iftheywerealso

2



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
JULY 23, 2018

going tobesupplying theirowntrash cans.  J. Ladd stated that theywillhaveatheir own
garbage cansanddumpster located ontheir site, butitwillbeacarry in, carry outsite likeVitale
Park.  S. Laddstated that theyareveryapproachable andopenminded andplantorunanice
operation.  S. Bagley stated thathehasnoproblems withtheLadd’sproposal, hisconcern isthe
road.  CEOA. Backus stated thatLakeville ParkRoad concerns needtobeaddressed tothe
Town Board.  Vitale Park isnotendorsing orinviting people topark intheParkandwalkonto
private property forbusiness.  Lakeville ParkRoad isaconcern totheneighbors that liveinthat
area.  ChairR. Bennett stated that their signage location should notbedirecting people down the
private road.  TheLadd’sfelt that theirproperty isverynoticeable andthesignwould be
discussed andapproved withBuilding & Zoning.  CEOA. Backus stated that intheir initial
proposal regarding drainage, therearenoplans todoanygradechanges other thanseeding and
cleaning itup.  ChairR. Bennett stated thatitcould bestated ontheirBuilding Permit thatany
grade work tobedone inthatarea, would becoordinated with theTown prior.  Anysubstantial
grades changes would require Planning Board review.    

ChairR. Bennett asked formotion toclose thePublic Hearing.  Motion toclose: (M/2/C (D.  
Richards/D. Andersen) Carried 4-0

ChairR. Bennett andtheBoard reviewed SEQR.  Negative declaration wasdetermined.  Motion
toapprove: M/2/C (R. Haak/D. Andersen) Carried 4-0

ChairR. Bennett stated thattheSitePlanapproval will require aoneyear follow up, orasneeded
ifthereareany issues.  Parking willbe3-4spaces foremployees.   Anyadditional parking added
onthewestsideofthelot, that isintended forcustomers would require prior Planning Board
approval, andinvolvement fromtheTownandHighway Department.  CEOA. Backus stated
that theparking onthewestsideshould alsobecoordinated with theexisting neighbors who
maintain theproperty jointly.  Siteclean-upandgrass seeding, butnofurther trees removed.   
Darkskycompliant lighting.  Anychanges ingrading willbereviewed prior with theBuilding &  
Zoning Department.  Anydrainage work regarding thedrainage Easement willbecoordinated
with theTownofLivonia.  Theywillcontact theLivingston County Water & Sewer Department
tocoordinate service.   

ChairR. Bennett asked foramotion toapprove theSitePlan Application aspresented with the
added amendments listed above.  Motion toapprove: M/2/C (D. Richards/R. Haak) Carried 4-0

ChairR. Bennett asked theBoard togothrough theConditional UsePermit criteria.  

1.  Will theestablishment, maintenance oroperation oftheconditional usebedetrimental toor
endanger thepublic health, safety, comfort, morals orgeneral welfare?  No

2.  Will theconditional usebesubstantially injurious totheuseandenjoyment ofother property
intheimmediate vicinity which arepermitted byright inthezoning district ofconcern?  Will the
conditional usediminish orimpair property values intheimmediate vicinity?  No

3



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
JULY 23, 2018

3.  Will theestablishment oftheconditional useimpede normal andorderly development and
improvement ofother property intheimmediate vicinity forusespermitted byright inthe
district ofconcern?  No

4.  Willadequate measures betaken toprovide ingress andegress inmanner which minimizes
pedestrian andvehicular traffic congestion inthepublic ways?  Yes

There isadjacent public parking, employee parking willbeprovided andanydevelopment will
beinconjunction with theTownofLivonia.  Additional customer parking willbecoordinated
with theexisting neighbors.  

5. Doadequate utilities, access roads, drainage andother facilities necessary totheoperation of
theconditional useexist, oraretheytobeprovided?  Yes

Drainage tobecoordinated withtheTownofLivonia andLivingston County Water & Sewer

6.  Does theconditional usepermit inallother respects conform totheapplicable regulations of
thischapter andother town/village laws, ordinances andregulations?  Yes

Chair R. Bennett asked foramotion toapprove theConditional UsePermit fortheuseofthe
Food Trailer andStand.  Motion toapprove: M/2/C (R. Haak/D. Andersen) Carried 4-0

CEOA. Backus hadabrief discussion with theBoard regarding theCellTower removal Bond.   
Theapplicant wasnotpresent.  

Withnofurther questions, Chair R. Bennett asked forMotion toadjourn themeeting at8:27
p.m...  Motion toadjourn: M/2/C (D. Richards/R. Haak Carried 4-0

Respectfully Submitted,   
Alison Houk, Recording Secretary

4


